City of Ridgecrest Kern County Inyo County San Bernardino County Indian Wells Valley Water District

INDIAN WELLS VALLEY
GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY

Ridgecrest City Hall 100 W California Ave., Ridgecrest, CA 93555  760-499-5000

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AGENDA
Thursday May 18, 2017, 10:00 a.m.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a disabled person and you need a disability-related
modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact Alan Christensen at (661) 868-3183.
Requests must be made as early as possible and at least one full business day before the start of the meeting. Documents
and material relating to an open session agenda items that are provided to the INWVGA Board of Directors prior to a
regular meeting will be available for public inspection and copying at Indian Wells Valley Water District, 500
Ridgecrest Blvd, Ridgecrest, CA 93555, or online at www.co.kern.ca.us/groundwater/.

Statements from the Public

The public will be allowed to address the Board during Public Comments about subjects within the jurisdiction of the
IWVGA Board and that are NOT on the agenda. No action may be taken on off-agenda items unless authorized by law.
Questions posed to the Board may be answered after the meeting or at future meeting. Dialog or extended discussion
between the public and the Board or staff will be limited in accordance with the Brown Act. The Public Comments
portion of the meeting shall be limited to three (3) minutes per speaker. Each person is limited to one comment during
Public Comments.

All remarks and questions should be addressed to the Board as a whole and not to any individual Board member or
staff. There will be time after each action item on the agenda to receive comments from the public. Again each speaker
will be limited to three (3) minutes. Speakers should be brief and limit their comments to the specific subject being
discussed. Persons will be limited to one comment per person unless directed by the Chair.

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS
This time is reserved for members of the public to address the Board relative to matters NOT on this agenda.
No action may be taken on non-agenda items unless authorized by law. Comments will be limited to three
minutes per person.

4. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS — None

5. CONSENT AGENDA (Items may be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion by the Board)
a. Approve Minutes of Board Meeting and Workshop of April 26, 2017

6. APPROVE ARTICLE 5 OF IWVGA BYLAWS

7. APPOINT INDIVIDUALS TO THE POLICY ADVISORY COMMITTEE



2|Page
IWVGA Board of Directors
Meeting of May 18, 2017

8. REPORT ON PLAN OF ACTION AND MILESTONES FOR A GROUNDWATER
SUSTAINABILITY PLAN

9. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

10. CLOSING COMMENTS
This time is reserved for comments by Board members and/or staff and to identify matters for future Board
business.

11. CLOSED SESSION
a. Public Employee Appointment — Title: Board Attorney (Government Code § 549579b)(1))

12. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING June 15, 2017, 10:00 am

13. ADJOURN

5/15/2017 8:50 AM



INDIAN WELLS VALLEY
GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY

SPECIAL MEETING - WORKSHOP

MINUTES
Springhill Suites
113 E. Sydnor
Ridgecrest, CA 93555
Wednesday, April 26, 2017, 5:30 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER:
The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Gleason at 5:31 p.m.

ROLL CALL:

-~ Commander Brian Longbottom, Department of the Navy
Peter Brown, Indian Wells Valley Water District
Chairperson Mick Gleason, Kern County

Mayor Peggy Breeden, City of Ridgecrest

Bob Harrington, Inyo County

Bob Page, San Bernardino County

Also Present:

Lauren Duffy, IWVGA Clerk

Alan Christensen, IWVGA Acting General Manager, Kern County
Phill Hall, IWVGA Counsel

Keith Lemieux, IWVGA Counsel

Dale Schafer, DWR Facilitator

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Carol Wilson followed by a moment of silence.

Chairperson Gleason thanked the elected officials who attended including: Chuck Griffin and
Ron Kicinski of IWVWD, City Council members Wallace Martin and Lindsey Stephens,
Supervisor Gleason’s Field Representative Denny Kline, and all other elected officials present.

PUBLIC COMMENTS:

Don Decker commented that at the last IWVGA meeting in March he made the observation that
a Preamble to the GSA Bylaws under development could offer improvement to the combined
document. In the spirit of public involvement and contribution, the Administrative Committee of
the IWV Domestic Well Owners has written a draft Preamble for the Board’s consideration,
which has been attached to these minutes. Mr. Decker continued that this is a “classic” Preamble
and contains a brief background together with a summary of the measures to be taken to address
the issues. It ends with the likely positive outcome of the initiative. “That is what we have given



2|Page
IWVGA Board of Directors
Meeting on April 26, 2017

you, and all-in-one compact page.” It emphasizes the importance of citizen involvement and of
cooperation and trust between the GSA and the IWV public. It summarizes the positive elements
in this critical endeavor. Mr. Decker stated that he does not have time in his three minutes to -
read the entire Preamble to the Board and public tonight, but he did read the first sentence
stating, “The Bylaws of the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Sustainability Agency provide the
legal details of the structure and function of the GSA Board and public Advisory Committees.
This Preamble outlines the background and motivation for this critical endeavor and most
importantly, the spirit of GSA and community cooperation, sense of common purpose and
commitment to urgent action reflecting the realities of the IWV groundwater status.” Mr. Decker
concluded that they spent substantial effort in designing, writing and editing this document and
sincerely hope the Board finds it to be of value. He respectfully requests that this draft Preamble
be part of the record for this meeting. Also, he requests that this document be placed on the May
GSA Board agenda for formal consideration.

Lindsey Stephens commented that the agenda item #8, should not be on the agenda for approval.
Ms. Stephens commented that for future reference, if the Board is seeking public opinion on a
specific item then the Board should not also have that item on the agenda for approval. It gives
the feeling as if the Board is not actually including and taking into consideration the public
comments. Alan Christensen clarified listing this agenda item as such allows flexibility for the
Board to approve the item if they so desire, but there is no requirement that they do so.
Chairperson Gleason stated that he didn’t feel that this Board would have an opportunity to
approve anything tonight.

Mike Neel stated that the public should not be limited to three minutes to comment.

Judie Decker commented that on April 13" there was a Tribal Workshop held and the Tribes
expressed intent of sitting on this GSA Board. Ms. Decker suggested that the GSA Board hire an
attorney who is well versed to deal with Tribes.

Gene Schneider commented that her Indian Wells Valley water bill is 85% Ready to Serve
charge and the rest is 15% usage. One month Ms. Schneider had a leak and used 5 times more
water than she usually does and her bill only went up 3%. Ms. Schneider feels that in an attempt
to encourage conservation that the water bills should be 85% usage and 15% Ready to Serve
charge.

Carol Wilson thanked the Board for having this meeting on behalf of the Board of Realtors.

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
None.

CONSENT CALENDAR:
a) Approve Meeting Minutes of March 16, 2017

Motion was made by Peter Brown and seconded by Peggy Breeden to approve the March 16,
2017 Minutes. Motion carried unanimously. (Ayes: Breeden, Brown, Gleason, Harrington,
Page Nays: None.)



3|Page
IWVGA Board of Directors
Meeting on April 26, 2017

PRILIMINARY APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS TO THE POLICY ADVISORY
COMMITTEE: .
Alan Christensen stated that Meadowbook and Mojave Pistachio have been appointed to the
Policy Advisory Committee. Specifically, Ed Imsand for Meadowbrook and Rod Stiefvater for
Mojave Pistachio. Searles Valley Minerals intends to submit an application. The two
preliminary appointments, Mojave Pistachio and Meadowbrook, are recommended. But more
appointments will be made at a future date. Other applications have been received, however, no
dateline has been set until today, and staff recommends that the Board approve an action that will
put a deadline on the applications as May 11", so that the applications may be presented at the
next IWVGA meeting on May 18

Public comments:

Mike Neel is opposed to the Board approving this item tonight, on general principal. Mr. Neel
fails to see the point in putting two members on the PAC when the Board hasn’t even demgned
the composition of the PAC yet.

Lindsey Stephens asked if the Board was only approving two members this evening. Other
applications have been filed.

Alan Christensen stated that back in November the Board approved Meadowbrook and Mojave
Pistachio to be members of the PAC. That action has already occurred. This is finally
identifying those individuals.

Lorelei Oviatt asked if Meadowbrook and Mojave Pistachio are representing large agriculture or
are they representing those entities. Phillip Hall answered Meadowbrook and Mojave Pistachio
will be representing the interest of large agriculture.

Joshua Nugent thanked the Board for appointing Meadowbrook and Mojave Pistachio and Mr.
Nugent hopes that the other members are appointed as quickly as possible.

Ed Imsand thanked the Board for the opportunity to participate on this Board. Mr. Imsand has
over 40 years of experience with agriculture.

Paul Nugent clarified that he does share office space with Mojave Pistachio, however he is a -
separate farmer for Nugent Ranch. Paul Nugent’s son, Joshua Nugent, works for Mojave
Pistachio.

Steve Godard, with Searles Valley Minerals, did confirm that Searles will be applying to become
a member of the PAC. Mr. Godard is here to better understand the details of Article 5.

Board comments:
Bob Page asked for a point of clarification, the staff recommendation includes the appointment
of two agencies as well as a deadline. Mr. Page hopes that the Board will table a decision on the
deadline until after the workshop is completed, which will provide insight into whether the
proposed deadline will provide sufficient time people to complete and submit their applications



4|Page
IWVGA Board of Directors
Meeting on April 26, 2017

under the provisions of an adopted Article 5 of the Authority Bylaws, which could be revised
tonight and not adopted until the next IWVGA meeting.

Peter Brown suggested that the Board automatically accepted Searles Valley as a member, seeing
as how the Board has already stated those three agencies. However, Mr. Brown understands that
information needs to be looked over. Mr. Brown doesn’t feel the May 11" deadline is necessary.
He suggested that the PAC start holding meetings already. -

Peggy Breeden is concerned about the PAC holding meetings with only two members on it.

Bob Harrington asked for clarification on “preliminary appointment.” Would the Board be
reconsidering this appointment later down the road?

Phillip Hall answered that as a preliminary appointment is a motion and not a resolution. When
the rest of the PAC members are appointed, then it would be attached to a resolution and then
patched to a roster. That roster will be the members of the PAC. The May 11" deadline was
picked in hopes that by the next meeting there would be a full roster. Alan Christensen stated
that in essence there will be no PAC forming, this is merely preliminary appointments.

Chair Gleason does not understand what functions the PAC would be doing with just two
members. Mr. Gleason does agree with getting the ball rolling on the PAC and appointing
members. Mr. Gleason suggests that the deadline does not get voted on.

Motion was made by Bob Page and seconded by Peter Brown to appoint the individuals from
Meadowbrook and Mojave Pistachio to the PAC and hold off on the May 11" deadline to accept
PAC applications. Motion carried unanimously. (Ayes: Breeden, Brown, Gleason, Harrington,
Page Nays: None.)

COMMUNITY WORKSHOP ON “ARTICLE 5 COMMITTEES” FOR INCLUSION TO
THE IWVGA BYLAWS:
Dale Schafer facilitated this portion of the workshop.

Public asked that each portion of Article 5 be reviewed, starting at 5.1.

Section 5.1 public comments:
Earl Wilson asked that the last line of 5.1, “the Board may dissolve a committee at any time
through a vote of the Board,” be expanded and agendized by the Board under the Brown Act.

Section 5.2 public comments:

Earl Wilson commented on the last sentence of the first paragraph, “A designated representative
of the committee member may make any inspection under this Section and the right of inspection |
includes the right to copy.” Mr. Wilson feels it is confusing. Also, Article 5.2, second paragraph,
line 4, the word “ordinances.” Mr. Wilson commented that he didn’t think standing committee
members could make decisions on ordinances.



5|Page
IWVGA Board of Directors
Meeting on April 26, 2017

Stan Rajtora asked if public could send comments in at any time. The answer was yes. Mr.
Rajtora commented that the committee members are the most qualified individuals to select their
leadership. Mr. Rajtora suggested that the committee members should be able to appoint their
own chairperson and the Board should not have anything to do with the appointment of the
committee chairpersons.

Lindsey Stephens commented on the second paragraph, first sentence, “The affirmative vote of a
majority of the quorum of standing committee members present at a standing committee meeting
is necessary for the passage of any motion.” Ms. Stephens believes this sentence is rambling and
there should be clarification on what a quorum is by a certain number. Keith Lemieux
commented that there are two possibilities; 1) could read “majority of the committee,” but if it
reads that and a majority doesn’t show up then it prevents an item to be moved on. 2) It could
read “majority of the quorum” which means if three members show up for a meeting and two of
the three members vote in one way then the majority rules. The Board agreed to reword and
simplify the first sentence of the second paragraph of section 5.2.

Section 5.3 public comments:

Stan Rajtora commented that this section sends the wrong message and that members of the
committees should be the only ones allowed to remove members under concurrence of the
Board. Keith Lemieux pointed out that if there are disputes on the Board and you are in the
minority group then the majority can get rid of you.

Section 5.4 public comments:

Lindsey Stephens commented that in the first sentence it reads “directions” and should possibly
read “tasking” instead. It is important that the committees be allowed to decide the direction and
not be told the direction to go. Suggested edit to the sentence so that the sentence instead read:
“The Board shall provide tasking to its standing commitiees, the expected duration for
completion of a particular task, and a summary of the resources, including staff or consultant
support available to the standing committee.”

Section 5.5 public comments:

Mike Neel commented that a sentence be added to the end of “The PAC shall continue to meet
regularly as provided by the Board and, where legally appropriate, advise the Board concerning .
the policy matter pertaining to the implementation of the GSP. The PAC shall have the same
role as stated above in all GSP updates.” Mr. Neel also suggests that the PAC meet monthly, if
not more frequently.

Stan Rajtora commented on the statement, “The PAC shall not discuss or influence any
enforcement aspects of the GSP implementation.” in the Bylaws, stating that enforcement
aspects of the Board are a policy issue and therefore must be discussed within the PAC. Mr.
Rajtora had conversations about this issue with Keith Lemieux and where they differ is in the
definition of “enforcement.” Mr. Rajtora was speaking about establishing enforcement policy.
Mr. Lemieux described this section was intended for the enforcement implementation. Mr.
Rajtora would like the words to reflect the intent. Mr. Lemieux directed public to refer to the
previous sentence that states”where legally appropriate, advise the Board concerning policy



6|Page
IWVGA Board of Directors
Meeting on April 26, 2017

matter pertaining to the implementation of the GSP.” Mr. Lemieux clarified that the PAC is
involved in the implementation, however not the enforcement of the implementation.

Lindsey Stephens asked again that the word “direction” be replaced with “tasking”.

Judie Decker commented that there are multiple copies of the Bylaws floating around. She asks
that it be narrowed down to one set of Bylaws.

Section 5.6 public comments:

Joshua Nugent asked that in the provided diagram of relationships between the Board of
Directors, Water Resource Manager, and the Standing Committees, there be an arrow connecting
the PAC and the TAC so that if the PAC has a technical question they can send it directly over to
the TAC. Phillip Hall commented that if you are on the PAC you have representation on the
TAC. All questions will go through the Water Resource Manager and added to the committee
agenda for comment.

Chairperson Gleason agreed with Joshua Nugent’s comment and likes the diagram that was .
presented. Mr. Gleason feels that the thing missing from the chart is somewhere in the middle of
the three bubbles must be coordination. There has to be a way to move information. It has to be
visually shown on the chart.

Section 5.7 public comments:

Chuck Griffin asked why the Board did not vote in the Eastern Kern Conservation Resource
District. Had the application not been completed yet? Mr. Griffin also stated that the large and
small agriculture should be defined by acreage. Peter Brown added that anything over 500 acres
is large agriculture.

Lorelei Oviatt clarified that she took every single parcel in the valley that was designated A or
Al, which is agriculture, and only 25 parcels are over 50 acres. Ms. Oviatt stated that she didn’t
think there were any single parcels over 500 acres. Ms. Oviatt stated she would send out the
study again.

Stan Rajtora commented that a couple of constituent groups should be added to the list including:
Medium Agricultural, Single-family Resident Owner, and a Mutual Water Group or Co-op.
Both the TAC and PAC applications need refinement, the draft Article 5 lists no real
qualifications for PAC members. The stakeholders have a right to understand the qualifications
of the people giving advice to the Board.

Peggy Breeden commented that most of the single dwellings will be de-minimis users who are
not part of this.

Phillip Hall commented that a de-minimis user, as defined under Sustainable Groundwater
Management Agency (SGMA), is a person who extracts, for domestic purposes, two acre-feet or
less per year.



7|Page
IWVGA Board of Directors
Meeting on April 26, 2017

Stan Rajtora commented that a de-minimis user is not a “single family resident”. A single family
resident lives within the two or three miles around this area and is a Ridgecrest, non-well-owning
resident.

Harold Manos suggested that large agriculture be defined by how much water is used, not by
how many acres they own. s

Commander Longbottom asked everyone to be mindful of finger pointing. The Board and the
public are one team and need to work together.

Doreen Conaway Baker stated, with regards to agriculture, that one person may own 25 parcels
and only have one well that feeds those 25 parcels. Is that considered in the process?

Raymond Kelso is concerned who represents the individuals. Mr. Kelso commented that he sees
representatives for large and small agriculture. Mr. Kelso added that the last two water bills he
received were less than $2 in usage charges, he is very conscious of conservation efforts. Chuck
Griffin commented that the Indian Wells Valley Water District will represent those individuals
of this Valley. Bob Harrington commented that Mr. Kelso is a groundwater user of this basin
and he obtains his water from the IWVWD, thus the Water District represents him. The reason
the IWVWD is a non-voting member on the PAC is because the Water District is a Board
member.

Renee Westa-Lusk asked what type of businesses would be allowed to be represented on the
PAC. Phillip Hall answered that the qualifications are vague in an attempt to look at the
applications prior and find suitable members.

Lorelei Oviatt clarified that she is a non-voting advisor on the PAC for Planning. The
Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) has to take into account land use and economic
development. So, besides agriculture and having people having houses out there, what are the
other businesses that property owners may want to have? The idea was to have business interests
on the PAC to also help integrate the GSP into an economic future plan.

Section 5.8 public comments:

Mike Neel commented that he felt the workshop was making progress. Mr. Neel added that this
sentence should be added to clarify removals. Suggested sentence addition: “PAC members may
be removed from their positions with a four-fifths vote of the PAC and concurrence of the
Board.” Mr. Neel turned in a comment sheet to the Board.

Section 5.9 public comments: _

West Katzenstein stated that it needs to be made clear that the members do not perceive that they
are going to write the plan. Instead, they would be providing alternatives. Changes in wording
to include the concept of alternative PAC proposals as well as PAC proposals. Keith Lemieux
stated that staff intended to have that concept included, however maybe it is not clear enough.
The “PAC Meeting Summaries” is supposed to include agreements and disagreements.



8|Page
IWVGA Board of Directors
Meeting on April 26, 2017

Donna Hocker asked what liability exposure PAC members have. Phillip Hall stated that the -
actual liabilities of this GSA lie with each agency represented. The way it is set up now, the PAC
is not making any final affirmations. The PAC is not writing policy. Instead, they are making
recommendations to the Board to adopt a policy. PAC members should be filing form 700s.

Mike Neel commented on the last paragraph of section 5.8, suggesting the following change to
read, “The Board shall consider all PAC Proposals and PAC Meeting Summaries, as well as any
technical information and reports provided by the TAC and the Water Resources Manager that

are requested by the Board”. '

Phillip Hall commented that there cannot be self-interested individuals having an undue
influence or control over the science that is going to occur here. This is one of the reasons that
they had an independent Water Resource Manager acting as the quarterback between all of these
entities, the committees and the Board. If the Water Resource Manager goes senile halfway
through, the TAC needs to be able to go directly to the Board and inform them. This is in part
why PAC Summaries don’t go directly to the Board, but instead through the Water Resource
Manager.

Section 5.10 public comments:
None.

Section 5.11 public comments:

Stan Rajtora commented that the TAC needs to have leadership independent of the Water
Resource Manager. The purpose of the TAC is to provide the Board with high quality technical
advice. There needs to be significant collaboration between the TAC and the Water Resource
Manager, however the TAC needs to be independent.

Mike Neel commented the Water Resource Manager should be administrative advisor for the
TAC and provide technical assistance as needed. The Water Resource Manager would be the
integrated advisor for the TAC and not the chairperson.

Section 5.12 public comments:

Lindsey Stephens commented on the word “may” in the following sentence, “Each member of
the PAC may nominate one member of the TAC for consideration and possible appointment to
the TAC by the Board.” As previously mentioned, each member would be able to nominate
someone. This sentence seems flexible on that interpretation. Mr. Lemieux clarified that the
PAC member MAY choose not to. -

West Katzenstein is concerned about the PAC being able to recommend TAC members when
everyone wants independent technical assessment from TAC members. The TAC members -
should not be perceived as the “hired gun” of someone on the PAC.

Judie Decker comments that the TAC needs scientists and not a representative of some group.

Stan Rajtora commented that the TAC members need to be the best people we can possibly get.
The TAC application needs to show the applicant’s qualifications.



9|Page
IWVGA Board of Directors
Meeting on April 26, 2017

Derek Hoffman thanked the Board for appointing Ed Imsand to the PAC. Mr. Hoffman asked
the Board to approve Article 5 as presented. The Board needs to ask themselves if the changes
suggested make the article better or just different.

Section 5.13 public comments: _
Elaine Mead commented on the first sentence of the section. The SGMA law 10727.8 says that
“The groundwater sustainability agency may appoint and consult with an advisory committee
consisting of interested parties for the purposes of developing and implementing a groundwater
sustainability plan.” Ms. Mead asked if there was another statue of law that the Board was
quoting that says that a Water Resource Manager is responsible for the preparation of each
technical element of the GSP. Phillip Hall explained that from his understanding, the public is
saying that they want independent technical advice. However, when the TAC has someone who
is not independent on it, then the TAC does not have independent technical advice, the TAC has .
somebody who is self-interested providing advice to the GSA. The problem here is due process.
The Water Resource Manager is there to provide independence, but the Water Resource Manager
will take into account the technical expertise, advice, and comments from everyone. Ms. Mead
clarified that her question was to the statement of “as required by law.” The only place in the
law that mentions we must develop a GSP is the aforementioned SGMA law 10727.8 and it does
not state that a Water Resource Manager must be used. Phillip Hall stated the “as required by
law” statement is in reference to due process, which is a constitutional aspect of law. Mr. Hall
stated that Ms. Mead was referring to a statue requirement. The concept here is to ensure that we
are taking care of the due process, constitutionally, that is created by this agency. Mr. Hall
explained due process and to ensure that the person writing the plan as a recommendation to the
Board is completely independent.

Lindsey Stephens stated that it seems there should be a conflict of interest section which is
finalized immediately. Phillip Hall commented that if a public agency takes into evidence that
the other side doesn’t get to speak, then due process doesn’t happen. Conflict of interest
resolution has been adopted. The Water Resource Manager and the PAC will file form 700s.

Board comment:

Chairperson Gleason thanked Dale Schafer for facilitating this portion of the workshop. Chair
Gleason suggested that somewhere in the Bylaws it mentions that it is subject to an annual
review.

APPROVE “ARTICLE § COMMITTEES” FOR INCLUSION TO THE IWVGA
BYLAWS:

Chair Gleason expects changes to be made to the Bylaws prior to approving them and wants to
allow staff and the Board time to digest all edits and changes mentioned by the public.

Peter Brown commented that there were some points and issues about the Water Resource
Manager which he felt were addressed by IWVGA staff already. It would help to have. a
definition for agriculture groups. Mr. Brown feels staff should focus on committee composition
and the rest of the edits can be easily modified.



10|Page
IWVGA Board of Directors
Meeting on April 26, 2017

Bob Page asked, with regards to section 5.7, under the initial list of voting members,
“Individuals seeking appointment to a voting position on the PAC must be.... a registered voter,
landowner, or the authorized representative of a landowner in the Indian Wells Valley
Groundwater Basin.” SGMA requires that the Board consider the interests of all beneficial uses
and users of groundwater. One of those uses is outside the land jurisdiction of the basin. Mr.
Page asked what if there were a business in Trona that wanted to participate in the PAC. What
would happen? Phillip Hall answered that that scenario was not considered, however how the
Bylaws are drafted right now the water provider in Trona is the wholesaler and no other scenario
was considered. Mr. Page commented that he expected a comment from public about
Disadvantaged Communities. While looking at all the beneficial users of water in this basin, the
Water District represents its customers on the IWVGA Board, but its customers would not be
represented on the PAC as its membership is currently proposed. Mr. Page feels that the
groundwater customers in the basin should have more than one seat on the PAC. He suggested
two additional constituent group seats that could be for residential customers of a public water
system. One seat would be for a Disadvantaged Community representative, as defined by
California Public Resource Code, section 75005(g).

Chair Gleason commented that flexibility as far as the structure that’s developed is key and
suggested periodic reviews of section 5.7. Phillip Hall suggested formalizing categories prior to
receiving applications.

Bob Harrington commented that this workshop proved to be very useful. Mr. Harrington is
concerned about the PAC being able to remove its own members. Mr. Harrington concluded that
Bob Page’s suggestions for additional representation on the PAC should be considered by the
Board.

Chair Gleason asked if every Board member would be allowed to appoint someone to be on the
PAC. Mr. Hall clarified that if Mr. Gleason were to appoint someone to the PAC whom he had
no direct contact with, did not influence the members choices on the PAC at all, then yes, under
the Brown Act it is okay for Mr. Gleason, or any Board member to appoint a member to the
PAC, if the Board members wished to do so.

Chair Gleason suggests an annual review of the composition of the PAC and the TAC in three or
four months.

Keith Lemieux stated changes he had listed as the following:
- Subject to annual review
- PAC appoints its own chair
- Wait for applications to define large and small agriculture
- Additional representatives including Disadvantaged Communities
- Revisit wordsmithing
- Arrows added to diagram

Commander Longbottom confirmed that the wordsmithing, which the public pointed out, would
be reviewed.



11|Page
IWVGA Board of Directors
Meeting on April 26, 2017

Mr. Page commented that the IWVGA Board appointed Chair Gleason and Peter Brown as a
subcommittee to work on the Bylaws.

Chuck Griffin commented that what is important is everyone working together to make this GSA
work.

The Board unanimously decided to not take action on this agenda item until after revisions were
made to the draft Bylaws and presented at the next IWVGA Meeting.

GENERAL MANAGER REPORT:
Alan Christensen reported that they have been receiving applications for the Water Resource
Manager. A total of 6 applications have been received thus far.

Mr. Hall suggested a deadline be set for the PAC applications to start filling the PAC seats. The
Board agreed to a “soft deadline” for the first round of applications.

CLOSING COMMENTS: .
Bob Harrington commented that Matt Kingsley regrets not being able to attend this workshop
and does plan to attend future meetings.

CLOSED SESSION:
None.

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING:
The next IWVGA meeting will be held Thursday, May 18, 2017, at 10:00 a.m., in the Council
Chambers at Ridgecrest City Hall, 100 W. California Avenue.

ADJOURN:
Chairperson Gleason announced the meeting adjourned at 8:33 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

NN '

Clerk of the Board of I
Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority



(draft)  Preamble (draft)
to the Bylaws of the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Sustainahbility Agency

(draft ver 7,3/30/2017, written by members of the Administrative Committee of the IWV Domestic Well Owners Association)

The Bylaws of the Indian Wells Valley (IWV) Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) provide
the legal details of the structure and function of the GSA Board and public Advisory Committees.
This Preamble outlines the background and motivation for this critical endeavor and most
importantly, the spirit of GSA and community cooperation, sense of common purpose and
commiiment to urgent action reflecting the realities of the IWYV groundwater status.

The major threat to the future well being of the enterprise and citizenry of the IWV is the severe
long term overdraft of the IWV aquifer - California Basin 6-54. Basin groundwater has been and
continues to be the sole source of supply for the Valley. The State of California has found Basin
6-34 to be in Critical Overdraft and accordingly has placed legal requirements on the Basin
authorities to form a GSA. This new agency is charged with the responsibility to develop and
implement an effective Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) to address this overdraft so that
the Basin is in a sustainable condition by 2040.

Tv that end, specific legitimate and enforceable land and water use regulations will be put in
place by the GSA Board, City and Counly aunthorities to protect groundwalter resources against
Surther degradation. Suitable water use fees will be levied to provide the necessary financial
support for Board actions including regulatory costs, development of new infrastructure and
alternate water sources. The foundation for such action will come from evidence-based scientific
investigation including on-going groundwater elevation measurements and further professional
analysis of the basin hydrology. The numerous existing published hydrogeologic studies of the
Basin do provide clear and adequate guidance from which to develop a GSP. Planned
supplemental IWV studies emphasizing the consequences of the modern drying climate on Basin
recharge can be used to fine-tune the details of the GSP. 1t is likely that an imported water source
will be required to maintain existing economic and social conditions.

The California State Sustainability laws specifically mandate that the public be involved in a
meaningful fashion in the creation of the GSA and in the design and implementation of the GSP.
To that end, two public Advisory Commitiees will be formed with proper representation of ail
stakeholders. These public Advisory Commiitees, one Policy and one Technical, will be charged
with providing the GSA Board with detailed advice, reports and plans based on focussed
objectives provided by the Board. The Board itself will have the responsibility to devise the GSP
and subsequent regulatory controls that will evolve from these Committee recommendations.

A Water Resource Manager, in a staff position, will be available to provide encouragement,
technical consultation and general support to the Board and to these Committees.

It will be possible in many areas for the Advisory Committees to present a consensus stakeholder
position to the Board, However, in other areas the Committee Reports will likely provide the
Board with a range of alternatives as a consequence of the competing interests of the
stakeholders. The critical importance of cooperation, collaboration and mutual trust between the
GSA Board members themselves, the Advisory Committees and the IWV public being served is
self-evident. Continuing public outreach and education on legal and technical issues by the
Board and staff will also be an essential element in promoting the cooperation so necessary to the
success of this endeavor, (552 words)



IWVGA ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE

Staff Report

TO: IWVGA Board Members DATE: May 18, 2017
FROM: Alan Christensen, IWVGA Staff

SUBJECT: Approval of Article 5 of the IWVGA Bylaws

DISCUSSION

At the IWVGA Board workshop last week, staff was directed to incorporate changes to Article 5 of

the Bylaws that was suggested by the public in attendance at the workshop and by the Board.
Attached is a strikeout version of Article 5 incorporating the changes.

It is important to remember that the Bylaws are a work in progress that will be built upon. We’ve
created the Bylaws and will adding to them over the coming months. For instance, the Fair Political
Practices Commission is expected to approve the Authority’s Conflict of Interest Code in late May
2017. Once approved by the State, staff would then incorporate the Code into the Bylaws since the
Board approved it in 2016.

Recommendation
Board discussion and final approval of Article 5 of the IWVGA Bylaws

Bylaws Article 5 05182017



5.1

5.2

ARTICLE 5 STANDING COMMITTEES

ESTABLISHMENT OF STANDING COMMITTEES. In accordance with Section
7.04 of the Agreement, the Board may from time to time establish standing committees
for the purpose of making recommendations to the Board on the various activities of the
Authority. The establishment of any standing committee and its general duties shall
require a vote of the Board, and the activities of the standing committee shall be subject
to the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code sections
54950, et seq.). Standing committees shall exist for the term specified in the action
creating the committee and, the Board may dissolve a committee at any time through a
vote of the Board.

CONDUCT OF STANDING COMMITTEES. All standing committee meetings shall
be noticed, held, and conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown
Act (California Government Code sections 54950, et seq.). Except as set forth below,
theThe Board shall appoint the respective committee chairs in consultation with the
committee members and the Board may further establish rules of conduct for said
standing committees. The Board shall, in consultation with the committee members,
establish a time and provide a place for regular meetings of any standing committee. The
Board Chairperson may call a special meeting of a standing committee as the need arises.
The Standing Committee’s chairperson, vice chairperson, or three members may make
the request to the Board for calling a special meeting. Standing committee meeting
minutes shall be recorded and upon approval shall be distributed to the Board. Unless
determined by General Counsel that a legal conflict, a public records exemption, or other
privilege exists, standing committee members shall have access to and may inspect the
records of the Authority, including, but not limited to, the accounting books and records
and minutes of the proceedings of the Board and other committees of the Board, at any
reasonable time. A designated representative of the committee member may make any
inspection under this Section and the right of inspection includes the right to copy.

A guorumyof a committee shall be a majority of the appointed committee members that
hold a vote. As provided in the Brown Act, no meeting of a standing committee shall

occur without the attendance of a quorum of its committee members. The affirmative

TR R - v f . lho affivrimati 3 ato £ ) ' 1O £ 4 - T ay £
YOL€ O IN€ majority Ol tnc¢ He—dFatve—vot o —a—majerity—ofthe—gquorum o

o members present at a standing committee meeting is necessary for
the passage of any motion. The voting on all matters of standing committees, including
minute orders, resolutions and ordinances, shall be reported on the minutes and
accomplished in a manner that readily signifies the action taken and the vote or
abstention on that action of each member present for the action. All rules of order for a
standing committee not otherwise provided for in these Bylaws shall be determined, to
the extent practicable, in accordance with “Robert’s Rules of Order;” provided, however,

standing committe



53

5.4

3.3

5.6

that no action shall be invalidated or its legality otherwise affected by the failure or
omission to observe or follow “Robert’s Rules of Order.” The Authority’s General
Counsel shall resolve all questions of compliance with “Robert’s Rules of Order.”

STANDING COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP. Standing committee appointments and
removal shall be made at the Board’s discretion.

STANDING COMMITTEE DIRECTION. The Board shall assign tasks previde
direction-to its standing committeescommittee-as-to-the-tasks-assigned-to-it, the expected
duratlon for completion of a particular task, and a summary of the resources, including
staff or consultant support available to the standing committee in performing the task.

POLICY ADVISORY COMMITTEE. As authorized by California Water Code
Section 10727.8, which provides that a “groundwater sustainability agency may appoint
and consult with an advisory committee consisting of interested parties for the purposes
of developing and implementing a groundwater sustainability plan,” the Board hereby
establishes a standing committee named the Policy Advisory Committee (PAC). The
PAC is the primary advisory body to the Board on all policy-related matters of the Board
that are appropriate for the PAC input. The Board shall provide tasksdirection to the
PAC and the PAC shall report directly to the Board.- As set forth Section 5.9, the PAC
shall be provided an opportunity to advise the Board on the development of the Indian
Wells Valley Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) including all components that, in
the aggregate, comprise the GSP, including but not limited to substantive components
required of a GSP under California Water Code Division 6, Part 2.74, Chapters 6 and 8§,
and under California Code of Regulations, Title 23, Division 2, Chapter 1.5, Subchapter 2
(“GSP Elements.”), prior to the Board’s approval of each GSP Element. Upon adoption
of the GSP, the PAC shall continue to meet regularly as provided by the Board and,
where legally appropriate, advise the Board concerning the policy matters pertaining to
the implementation of the GSP. In the event that the GSP is subject to modification, such
modifications shall be made in accordance with these bylaws. The PAC shall not discuss
or influence any enforcement aspects of GSP 1mplementat10n so as to avoid conflicts of
interest and other legal limitations. Sections 5.3 through 5.13 shall be subject to annual

TR B P—
review by the Board

POLICY ADVISORY COMMITTEE MISSION AND OBJECTIVES. As required
by California Water Code Section 10723.2, the Authority as a Groundwater
Sustainability Agency must consider the interests of all beneficial uses and users of
groundwater within the Basin. To assit the Authority with meeting this requirement, the
objectives of the PAC are to: (1) provide all water users in the Basin with a meaningful
voice and representation on policy matters of the Board associated with SGMA; (2) work



8.7

collaboratively for the benefit of the Basin as a whole; (3) provide input and
recommendations to the Board, in collaboration with the Water Resources Manager, and
other committees of the Board, in support of actions that facilitate bringing the Basin into
compliance with SGMA; and (4) work in good faith to achieve consensus and make
unified recommendations to develop a GSP, and for management actions to achieve
groundwater sustainability in accordance with the requirements of SGMA.

POLICY ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP. The Board shall appoint
voting PAC members to the following constituent groups:

2 representatives from Large Agriculture

1 representative from Small Agriculture

2 representatives from Business Interests

2 representatives from Domestic Well Owners

2 representatives from residential customers of a public agency water suppliers
1 representative from Eastern Kern County Resource Conservation District

1 representative from Wholesaler and Industrial User

of the above listed constituent groups, shall also represent Disadvantage Communities as

defined by California Public Resources Code Section 75005(g). by residing or conducting

business within a Disadvantaged Community or serving water to a Disadvantaged

Community.

_An individual may qualify as a'Domestic Well Owner representative if they own a well

used for residential purposes only, if they are part of a well sharing agreement, or if they

are a shareholder/membef of a mutual water company.

Individuals seeking appointment to a voting position on the PAC must be a citizen of the
United States that is at least 18 years of age and either a registered voter, landowner, o
the-authorized representative of a landowner, or a person that relies on groundwater from
the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Basin. Individuals seeking membership to a voting
position on the PAC must submit an application which will be reviewed and acted upon
by the Board. However, since the Eastern Kern County Resource Conservation District
is a public agency, its Board will be allowed to submit a request for the appointment of an
individual from their agency.

The Board shall also provide non-voting membership on the PAC for the following:

1 representative from the Indian Wells Valley Water District
1 representative from the Department of the Navy
1 representative from the Bureau of Land Management



5.8

5.9

Additionally, while not considered official members of the PAC and not holding any
voting rights on matters before the PAC, one representative from Kern County Planning
and Natural Resources Department shall be appointed to provide land use expertise.

The public entities and Departments set forth above may request the appointment of a
PAC member representative that is a member of their Board or organization.

Having already conducted an application process and upon the proper and thorough
review of the applications submitted, the Board has chosen the initial PAC membership
set forth in Authority Resolution . Said Resolution may be amended in the
future as the need arises to reflect changes in PAC membership.

POLICY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CHAIRPERSON AND VICE-
CHAIRPERSON, AND MEMBERSHIP TERMS. The PACBeard shall appoint a
PAC Chairperson and PAC Vice-chairperson in consultation with and-based-upen

v smr it raac craada Feoian RAaard DA( I'h PAC Janall  annaai . L & liea
ROM iHonsS—madae—trom the Board. AL b ae—PAd Stidt uﬂ-};“)w'l'}i a—PAL Mice-

chairperson.— The non-voting members of the PAC and the Eastern Kern County
Resource Conservation District may change their PAC member representatives without
Board approval. All other changes in PAC membership shall require Board approval.
Changes in individual PAC members should generally coincide with the annual
membership review process. In the event that a PAC member needs to step down outside
of this timeframe, the member should notify the PAC Chair (or, as warranted, the Vice-
Chair) in writing of the need for change no less than two weeks prior to the next PAC
meeting. If the member desires, they may provide a recommendation to the Board on
replacement member to the PAC.

The initial term of PAC member representatives shall be until the GSP is
completed and approved by DWR. Subsequent terms shall be two years, culminating at
the end of a calendar year.

POLICY ADVISORY COMMITTEE ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITES. The
PAC, in consultation with the Water Resources Manager-, shall be tasked by the Board to
develop non-binding proposals on policy matters pertaining to each GSP Element (“PAC
Proposals”). The PAC shall strive for consensus in all of its decision-making,
particularly when crafting PAC Proposals. If the PAC is unable to reach consensus, the
range of opinions provided, including areas of agreement and disagreement, will be
documented in meeting summaries (“PAC Meeting Summaries™). PAC Proposals and
PAC Meeting Summaries shall be submitted to the Water Resources Manager -for initial
review and comment. After considering all comments provided by the Water Resources
Manager, and incorporating such comments to the extent deemed appropriate by the
PAC, the PAC shall submit final PAC Proposals and any final PAC Meeting Summaries



5.10

5.11

5.12

to the Board for consideration. If the PAC deems it inappropriate to include any
comments or concerns of the Water Resources Manager , the PAC will provide the Board
with a detailed reasoning to support of its determination.

The Board shall consider all PAC Proposals and PAC Meeting Summaries, as
well as any technical information and reports provided by the Water Resources Manager
that are requested by the Board, and after such consideration, the Board shall make a final
approval of each GSP Element and direct the Water Resources Manager to prepare the
GSP Element in accordance with the Board’s approval.

PAC ATTENDANCE. PAC member representatives must regularly attend all meetings
of the PAC. PAC member representatives who regularly miss PAC meetings may be
removed by the action of the Board. PAC member representatives agree to: (1) arrive at
each meeting fully prepared to discuss the issues on the agenda, where such preparation
includes reviewing meeting minutes, policy information, and draft documents distributed
in advance of each PAC meeting; (2) present and represent the views of their constituent
group on the issues being discussed and be willing to engage in respectful, constructive
dialogue with other members of the PAC; (3) develop a problem-solving approach in
which they consider the interests and viewpoints of all stakeholders in the Basin; (4) keep
their constituent group informed about ongoing issues and actively seek their input; and
(5) pursue the PAC’s purpose and goals and support GSP implementation. An individual
appointed by the Board shall prepare written minutes of all PAC meetings, which shall be
available for public inspection once reviewed and approved by the PAC.

TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE. The Board hereby establishes a standing
committee named the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) which will assist the Water
Resources Manager in the preparation of the GSP and will work collaboratively with
other committees of the Board. The Water Resources Manager shall act as the Chair for
the TAC and shall ensure that the TAC meets as needed to provide technical assistance in
the preparation and review of each GSP Element.

TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP. -The-WaterResourees
Manager—shall-bethe Chair-of the TAC: The TAC shall be comprised of individuals
representing PAC members, PAC membershlp categories and the interests of the Basin
landowners and water users. Members of the TAC must have a formal education and
experience in a groundwater related field and an understanding of the technical aspects of
the Basin or similar groundwater basins in California. Each member of the PAC may
nominate one member of the TAC for review and possible approval by the Board. The
Board may also appoint members to the TAC that are not affiliated with any PAC



5.13

members to ensure proper stakeholder representation. The initial TAC membership shall
be adopted by Authority Resolution. Said Resolution may be amended in the future as the
need arises to reflect changes in appointment of TAC representatives consistent with
these Bylaws. The initial term of membership for the TAC shall be until the GSP is
completed and approved by DWR. Subsequent terms of membership shall be two years,
culmmatmg at the end of a calendar year. The TAC shall appoint a TAC Chairperson

(™ Vieceo( hatrmeronn ,\‘1\-«"‘.! v the Water | J
and a TAC Vice-Chairperson in consultation with the Water Resources Manage

TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITES. As
required by law and as directed by the Board, the Water Resources Manager shall be
responsible for the preparatlon of each technical element of the GSP. The Water
Resources Manager shall set the agenda of each TAC meeting so thatpresent each
technical element of the GSP is presented to the TAC in draﬁ; toand afford the TAC a
reasonable opportunity to review and- conduct a thorough evaluation prior to finalization
of that technical element. In the course of evaluating each draft technical element of the
GSP, the TAC shall strive for consensus in preparing written recommendations to the
Water Resources Manager (“TAC Proposals™). The TAC shall submit its TAC Proposals
to the Water Resources Manager, as well as written summaries of the range of TAC
comments reflecting any areas of disagreement for consideration in the final preparation
of any GSP Element. [fln the event that any TAC member disagrees with any proposed
GSP element following discussiondicussion with the Water Resources manager, that
member (or members) may submit a written analysis and objection to the Board no later
than 72 hours before that GSP element is considered by the Board. In the event that the
GSP is subject to modification, such modifications shall be made in accordance with
these bylaws. The TAC shall not discuss or influence any enforcement aspects of GSP
implementation, so as to avoid conflicts of interest and other legal limitations.




IWVGA ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE

Staff Report

TO: IWVGA Board Members DATE: May 18, 2017
FROM: Alan Christensen, IWVGA Staff

SUBJECT: Preliminary Appointment of Members to the Policy Advisory Committee

DISCUSSION

This item is for the Board to appoint individual members to the Policy Advisory Committee
(PAC) that represent the major groundwater pumpers in the Indian Wells Valley. Specifically,
the individual representatives to the PAC are as follows:

Name Category Organization

Steve Godard Wholesaler and Industrial User Searles Valley Minerals

Donna Thomas Eastern Kern County RCD EKCRCD

Brian Longbottom  Department of the Navy Navy

Don Zdeba Indian Wells Valley Water District ITWVWD

Ryan Klausch Bureau of Land Management BLM

Carol Wilson Business Interests Ridgecrest Association of Realtors

This is the second round of preliminary appointments. When all appointments are made by the
Board, a resolution with all appointees will be made at a future meeting. Again, remember that
more appointments will be made at your next meeting in June.

Staff has placed an advertisement in the local newspaper announcing that the last day to receive
applications to the PAC is June 8, 2017 at 5 pm. This date will give the staff time to review the
applications so that the Board may consider them at their meeting on June 15, 2017.

RECOMMENDATION
a) Appoint the above individuals to the Policy Advisory Committee (PAC)

b) Appoint a committee to review the remaining PAC applications and make
recommendations to the Board for appointments to the PAC

PAC Appointments 05182017



TWVGA ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE

Staff Report
TO: IWVGA Board Members DATE: May 18, 2017
FROM: Alan Christensen, IWVGA Staff
SUBJECT: Report on Plan of Action and Milestones (POAM) for a Groundwater
Sustainability Plan
DISCUSSION

The POAM timeline is attached for the Board’s discussion and direction

POAM Report 05182017



padojaaaq |elda1e A [euoBWIOU| 3231w W) pue (uolieledald uoi1a9s dSD) 19NpoId J40M J01DBIIUDY) - YSEL
2U01s3[IN 103[04d [«
9 020z ‘L€ Aenuep - sujpesq uondopy 4S9
< ueld sjdopy YS9
[eAoiddy/mainay [euld
induj 21jgnd syelodioay
Buneay 21jand Jonpuo)
< Bunsapy aljand soloN
. M3INSY Jelq [eulq
LOISSNISIg/MBIASY Lelq [In4
suondQ uonejuswaduj ued
SOLeUs2S |apopy/doesg
Ailigeurelsng 1o} suolay
SBUOISAYII ‘SPIOYSIYL ‘S3A0BIqO
S)nsay 8|qe.ISapUN BuLdQ
[0 Ajijiqeureisng
eusju) Jwb sjqeurelsng
I4 0} ueld pue sdeg) ejeq
JHomaN Buuiojiuoj|
[epoyy [enidaauo)/bunieg c_mmm_
salpnig [ealuyoa b_mmocmhm_wm_
uonduoss( ealy cm_m_
uonezjuebip yso|
M3INBAQ YINDS
sajny/1apey) mainay|
o2 JUBIS) PIEMY/MBINSY w_a_,m_
uoneoiddy juels) | doid|
YOM SLEIS 6y ‘say Jajep
JoBJUOD Em_uommz:um_mmém;mm_
panizosy sasuodsay|
< D4y 16} "say Jalep
< $58001d UOIjEIBUSD) anuanay|
2 Bunpayog sesmiwwo)
< SIaqWB Y1 B Jvd Juloddy
o Ispey) Jv1 3 Ovd ldopy
< sme|Ag jdopy/|
15| judy - paroidddy vS9
v erfirfor|e|e]z]ols|vlele]tferfir]|or|e|s|z]o|s|v]e|e]|sfer|rr]orfe|a]z|ofs|tv]|el|e]|! syse] uonjeledald 4S9
0202 6T0Z 8T0¢ LT0Z YJUo/ies |

o o 2,
Lol X

.
o

>,
.

S2aU0IS3IAl PUB UOIJY JO UE|d dSD HEId VOAMI



